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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into an amendment to an
existing SOLE SOURCE contract with Southwestem Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH, Vendor
#177511, by increasing the price limitation by $235,669 from $4,355,988 to $4,591,657 using
additional Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) funds made available through
the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (lIJA) and from remaining regular program year funds,
both from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through September 30, 2025.
There is no time extension being requested for this contract. The original contract was approved by
Governor and Executive Council on September 20,2023, Item #89. 100% Federal Funds

Funding is available in the following account, contingent upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the operating budget, as follows:

New Hampshire Department of Energy. Fuel Assistance FY2025
02-52-52-520510-33540000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $235,669

EXPLANATION

This is an amendment to a contract is SOLE SOURCE because the historical performance of the
Community Action Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Low-Income Home Energy Assistance
Program (LIHEAP), their outreach and client service capabilities, and the synergies that benefit the
FAP as a result of the five statewide CAAs' implementation of several other federal assistance
programs as well as the infrastructure that is already in place to deliver LIHEAP (also known as Fuel
Assistance Program or FAP) services. The Department proposes to continue to subcontract with the
five CAAs who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for more than three
decades. The CAAs work closely with the Department's FAP Administrator in the implementation of
the program.
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This amendment adds additional funding which was received for Program Year 24 (PY24) to existing
contracts and makes them available to the Community Action Agencies until the contract ends on
September 30, 2025, making them available for the next winter heating season. Demand and benefit
amounts have varied across the CAAs and these amendments seek to position these additional fiinds
to the CAAs that have experienced the most need.

In the event that Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be requested to
support this contract.

Respectfully submitted.

Jared S. Chicoine

Commissioner



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC

AMENDMENT
\

This Amendment is between the State of New Hampshire Department of Energy, 21
South Fruit Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as the
"State") and Southwestern Community Services, Inc., 63 Community Way, PO Box 603, Keene,
Cheshire County, NH 03431 (hereinafter the "Contractor").'

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"), as approved by
Governor and Council on September 20,2023, Item #89, the Contractor has agreed to provide
certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in consideration of
payment by the State of certain sums as specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and
only after approval of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
conditions in the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1) Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and
modified as follows:

A) Price Limitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking
the current sum of $4,355,988 and inserting in place thereof the total sum

. of$4,59l,657.

B) Exhibit C - Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph by striking
the current sum of $4,355,988 and inserting in place thereof the total sum
of $4,591,657.

C) Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of
$294,638 and inserting for administrative costs $316,060.

D) Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of
$3,917,550 and inserting for program costs $4,131,797.

2) Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by
the Terms and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder
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shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions
set forth in the Agreement as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year
written below.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Depanment of Energy

Date:

Jtred S. Chicoine, Commissioner

Southwestern Community Services, Inc

Date: P/>//7/3V By: , CEQ
(Name & Title of Person Authorized to Sign)

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire at their meeting on , 2024.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By:

Title:

Grants: 240INHLIE1; Award Date: 10/23/23
and 2401NHLIEA; Award Date: 04/22/24 Contractor Initials: ijM
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY

SERVICES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 19, 1965.

1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing

as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID; 65514

Certificate Number; 0006663003

%

Urn

(§>

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 9th day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/OO/YYYY)

12/19/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETV^EN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lleuof such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

The Hilb Group New England. LLC

PC Box 606

Keene NH 03431

contact Ana O'Dcnneli, CPIW, CiC

PHONE /ft77) PAX
UUC,No.Exll; (WC.Nc):

ADDRESS- aodonneliighiibgroup.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICf

INSURER A Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co 18058

INSURED

Southwestern Community Services Inc.

63 Community Way

PO Box 603

Keene NH 03431

INSURER B
Granite State Healthcare & Human Services Trust

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURERS

INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24/25 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL

mss.
5UBR

POUCY NUMBER
POLICY EFF
IMM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DDA'YYY) LIMITS

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY

CLAiMS-MAOE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE •

TSAMA'GE,TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea oecuiraneal

PHPK2636316 01/01/2024 01/01/2025

MED EXP (Any one pfson)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

OENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY □
OTHER:

X PRO
JECT □ LOC

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OPAGG

Professional Liability

1,000.000

100.000

5,000

1,000.000

2,000.000

2,000.000

1m / 2m

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANYAUTOX

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa acddentV

1,000.000

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NOr^WNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2636315 01/01/2024 01/01/2025 BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per actideni)

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LlAB

DED X

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 2.000,000

PHUM93672 01/01/2024 01/01/2025 AGGREGATE 2.000,000

RETENTION S 10,000

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mendeiory In NH)
K yes. describe urxler
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

STATUTE
OTH
ER

HCHS20242000036 01/01/2024 01/01/2025 E-L. EACH ACCIDENT 1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1.000.000

E-L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 1.000.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Additional Remarhi Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required)

3a Stale: NH. All ofncers Included. This certificate is Issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate
does not amend, extend or alter the coverage afforded by the policies referenced herein.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Energy

21 South Fruit St, StelO

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

e 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORO
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September 20, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into a SOLE
SOURCE contract with Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (VC#177511), Keene, NH, in
the amount of $4,355,988 for the Fuel Assistance Program effective upon Govemor and Executive
Council approval through September 30, 2025. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request arc available in the following account in FY 2024 iqxm the availability
and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget:

NH Department of Energy. Fuel Assistance FY2024
02-52-52-520510-33540000

074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Rdief $4^55,988

2) Further request authorization to advance Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
$443,317 fiom the above-referenced contract amount.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historic^ performance of the Conununity Action
Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach and
client service capabilities, the synergies that benefit the FAP as a result of the five statewide
CAAs* implementation of several other federal assistance programs, and the infrastructure that is
already in place to deliver FAP services. The Department proposes to continue to subcontract
with the five CAAs who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for more than
three decades. The CAAs work closely widi the Department's FAP Administrator in the
implementation of the program.

FAP is a statewide program, funded by a Federal Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
(LIHEAP) Block Grant, and works to make home energy more affordable for income-qualified
New Hampshire families, including those who are elderly or disabled. Program funds are
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targeted to low income households with high energy burdens. The current maximum income
level is 60% of the State Median Income (SMI), which is $80,069 for a farnily of four. The
average FAP benefit during the l^t program year was $ 1,530. The program operates on an
October 1" to September 30*^ program year.

The proposed advance of funds will enable the CAA to operate the program between monthly
reimbursements from the State.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

RespectftiHy^bmitted,

Jared Chicoine

Commissioner



FORM NUMBER P-37 (vcnion 2/23/2023)

Notice: Thi) sgrcemcni and al) of its aitachmenis shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, conHdential or proprietary must
be clearly idcntlHcd to the agency artd agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State ofNew Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I Slate Agency Name

Department of Energy

1.2 Slate Agency Address

21 S. Fruit St.. See. 10. Concord. NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

63 Community Way. PO Box 603. Keenc. NH 03431

I.S Contractor Phone

Number

(603)352-7152

1.6 Account Unit and Class

33540000-074

1.7 Completion Date
September 30.2025

I.S Price Limitation

S4.355.988

1.9 Contracting OfTlcer for State Agency
Joshua W. Elliott. Director. Policy and Programs Division

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-6003

1.11 Contractor Signature

^^jCtkS^QJV-LjLi^ D.ic: 02/91132
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor

Signatory Beth Daniels. CEO

1.13 State Agency Sr^nahire 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Jared S. Chlcoine. Commissioner

\.\iFApproval by the N.H. Depanment of Administration. Division of Personnel (If applicable)

' 8y: Director. On:

1.16 Approval by IheAR^^Ceneral (Form, Substance and E.Kecuiion) (ifapplicable)

^  On: 9/1/2023

1.17 Approval by the Governor and E.xecutive Council (if applicable)

O&C Item number: C&C Meeting Date:

LIHEAP24 SCS

Award 0 24OINHLIEA

CFDA<93.56«
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Siaic of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block I.I ("State*'),
engages contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perforTTt, the work or sale of goods, or both,
identified and more particularly described in the atuiched EXHIBIT B
which is incorporated herein by reference ("ScrN-ices").

i. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrao'.
and subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire, if applicable, this Agreement, and all
obligations ofihe parties hereunder. shall become cfTeciive on the date
the Governor and Executive Council approve this Agreement, unless
no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement shall
become eTecilve on the date the Agreement is signed by the State
Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("EITcciivc Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the ElTcctivc
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to (he Eflective
Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor, und in the
event that this Agreement does not become effective, the Slate shall
have no liability to the Contractor, including without limitation, any
obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs incurred or 5ver\'iccs
performed.
3.3 Coniraaor musi complctc ail Ser\-ices by the Completion Date
spccilled in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrao'. oil
obligations of (he Slate hcrcundcr. including, without limitation, the
continuance of payments hcrcundcr. arc contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall the
Slate be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available
appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the appropriation
or Dvailabilit)' of funding for this Agreement and the Scope for
Services provided in EXHIBIT B. in whole or in part, the State shall
have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available,
if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or terminate the Services
under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice
of such reduction or termination. The State shall not be required to
transfer funds from any other account or source to the Account
identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that Account arc reduced

or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE7PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.

5. i The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment arc
identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C which is
incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary,
and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the
total of ail payments authorized, or actually made hcrcundcr. exceed
the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The payment by the State
of (he contract price shall be the only and the complete reimbursement
to the Contractor for all expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the
Contractor in the performance hereof, and shall be the only and the
complete compensation to (he Contractor for the Ser\'ices.
5;3 The State reserves the ri^t to offset from any amounts otherwise
payable to the Contractor under ihi.s Agreement those liquidated

amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7 through RSA 80;7-c
or any other pri)vi,sion of law.
5.4 1'hc State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Coniraclor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BV CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the Contractor
shall comply with ull appiicahk siaiuie.s. luw.s, rcguloiiorts. and orders
of federal, state, county or municipal authorities which impose ony
obligaiion or duty upon the Contractor, including, but not limited to,
civil rights and equal employment opponunity laws orKJ the
Governor's order on Respect and Civility in the SVorkplacc. Executive
order 2020-01. In addition, if this Agreement is funded in any pan by
monies of the United States, the Contractor shall comply with all
federal executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any
rules, regulations and guidelines as the State or the United Stoics issue
to implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply with
all applicable intellectual property laws,.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall rwi
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment because
of age. sc.x. sexual orientation, race, color, marital status, physical or
mental disability, religious creed, national origin, gender identity, or
gender expression, and will take affirmaiive action to prevent such
discrimination, unless exempt by state or federal law. The Contractor
shtili ensure any subcontractors comply with these nondiscriminaiion
requirements.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have (he purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks, or
other unlawi'ul or improper means of obtaining busings.
6.4. The Contractor ogrccs to permit the State or United States access
to any of the Contractors books, records and accounts for the purpose
of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and all rules,
regulations and orders pcnaining to the covenants. (crm.s and
conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Coniraaor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. 'I'he Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged In the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized to
do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 The Contraaing Officer specified in block 1.9. or any successor,
shall be the State's point of contact pcnaining to this Agreement.
8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of (he
Contractor shall constitute on event of default hereunder ("Event of
(default"):
B.I.I failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule:
8.1.2 failure to submit any repon required hereunder: and/or ,
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of this
Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take
any one. or more, or all. of the following actions;

LIHEAP24 SCS
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8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice spccif^'ing the Event of
Oefault and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days from
the date of the notice; and if the Event of Oefault is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, elTcctive two (2) calendar days aOcr giving
the Conimcior rtoilcc of termination:

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending ail payments to be made under this Agreement
and ordering that the ponion of the contract price which would
otherwise occrue to the Contractor during the period from the date of
such notice until such time as the State determines that the Contractor

has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid to the Contractor:
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and Kt ofTagainst any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any Event

of Default: and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8. the State may. oi its sole discretion,
terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in pan. by thirty
(30) calendar days wrincn notice to the Contractor that the State is
exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any

. reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor shall.
at the State's discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer, not later
than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of termination, a repon
("Termination Rcpon" ) describing in detoil all Services performed,
and the coniraci price tamed, to and including the date of termination.
In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractorshall. within fifteen

(IS) calendar days of notice of early termination, develop and submit
to the State a transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "'Property" shall mean oil
data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performartce of. or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports, files,
formulae. sur\'cys. maps, charts, sound recordings, video recordings,
pictorial reproductions, drawirtgs. analyses, graphic representations,
computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda,
papers, and documents, all whether finished or unfinished.
10.2 All date and any Property which has been received from the State,
or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned to
the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any
reason. \

10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be

governed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

M. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agieement the Contractor Is in all respects an
independent comroctor. and is neither an agent nor an employee of the
Slate. Neither the Contractor nor any of iis olTiccrs. employees, agents
or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive any
benefits, workers' compensation or other emolumems provided by the
Stole to its employees.

12. assicnment/delecation/subcontracts.

12.1 Contractor shall provide the State writicn notice at least fiHcen
(IS) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. N|c such nssignmcm.
delegation, or other transfer shall be cfTcciivc without the wrincn
consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or scries of related tnmsactions in which

a third pany, together with its afnilaics. becomes the direct or indirect
owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting shares or similar
equity interests, or combined v-oiing power of the Contractor, or (b) the
sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Contractor.
12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent of the State.
12.4 '{"he State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained in a
suhcontraci or an a.ssignmcni agreement to which it is not a puny.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify, defend,
and hold harmless the Su«c. its officers, and employees from and
against all actions, claims, damages, demands, judgments, fines,
liabilities, losses, and other ccpenscs, irtcluding. without limitation,
reoscnt^le attorneys' fees, arising out ofor reloting to this Agreement
directly or indirectly arising from death, personal injury, propcny
damage, intellectual propcny infringement, or other claims asscncd
against the State, its officers, or employees caused by the aci.s or
omissions of negligence, reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by
the Contractor, its employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State
shall not be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising
under this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State's

sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the State.
This covenant in porogroph 13 shall survive the termination of this
Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and continuously
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or assignee to
obtain and maintain in force, (he following insurance;
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily injury', death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or c.xces$: and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Propeny
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than 80%
of the whole replacement value of the Property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of New
Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued by
insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 I'he Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1,9, or any successor, a ccnificatc(s) of insurance for alt
insurance required under this Agreement. At the request of the
Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor shall provide
ccnificatc(s) of insurance for all renewoi(s) of insurance required
under this Agreement. The ccnificaie($) of insurance and any renewals
thereof shall be attached and arc incorporated herein by reference.
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15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, cenifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from, the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Worken'
Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-A. Contrtiaor shall maintain, and require any
subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of Workers'
Compensation in connection with activities which the person proposes
to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting OfTtcer identified in block i .9. or any successor, proof
of Workers' Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA
chapter 281-A and any applicable renevval(s) thereof, which shall be
anached and ore incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not
be responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation premiums
or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor
or employee of Contractor, which might arise under applicable State
of New Hampshire Workers' Compensation laws in connection with
the performance of the Serx-lces under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement shall
not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later enforce any such
rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent broach.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by o party hereto to the other party shall be
deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by
ccrtified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post Office
oddrcsscd to the parties at the addresses given In blocks 1.2 and 1.4.
herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the panics
hereto and only aRer approval o fsuch amendment, waiver or discharge
by the Governor and ̂ ccuiive Council ofthe State ofNew Hampshire
unless no such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant
to State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be govemcd, interpreted and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire e.tcepi where
the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The wording used
in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the parties to express their

mutual intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or in
favor of any party.
19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the breach
or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding arbitration,
but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the Mcrrimock County
Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall have exclusive
jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between the

terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXillDIT A) and any other
portion of this Agreement including any anochmenis thereto, the terms
of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PA RTIES. This Agreement is being entered into for the
sole benefit of the panics hereto, and nothing herein, c.xprcss or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The heading.* throughout the Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in no
way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the inicrpreuition.
construction or meaning of the provisions of this Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and alTiliaies. shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
addiiional documents and take such funher actions as may be
reasonably required to carrN' out the provisions of this Agreement and
give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement arc held by a court of compctcrti jurisdiction to be contrary
to any state or federal law. the remaining provisions of this Agreement
will remain in full force and efTect.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed
an original, constitutes (he entire' agreement and understanding
between the panics, and supersedes ail prior agreements and
understandings with respect to the subject matter hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. On or before the dale set forth in Block 1.7 of the General Provisions, the Contractor
shall deliver lo the State an independent audit of the Contractor's entire agency by a
qualified independent auditor in good standing with the state and federal government.

2. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and expenditures by contract or
grant number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The Contractor shall
utilize a competitive bidding process to choose a qualifted financial auditor at least every
four years.

3. The audit report shall include a schedule of prior years' questioned costs along with an
Agency response to the current status of the prior years' questioned costs. Copies of all
0MB letters written as a result of audits shall be forwarded to New Hampshire
Department of Energy (NH DOE). The audit shall be forwarded to NH DOE within one
month of the time of receipt by the Agency, accompanied by an action plan for each
finding or questioned cost.

4. Delete the following from paragraph 10 of the General Provisions: 'The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be identical to
those of any Final Report described in E.xhibit A."

5. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost
principles detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principles.

6. Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Agency
for three years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report per 2 CFR
200.334 - Retention Requirements for Records and until all audit findings have been
resolved.

7. In accordance with Public Law 103-333, the "'Departments of Labor, Health and Human
Services, and Education, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act of 1995," the
following provisions are applicable to this grant award:

a. Section 507: "Purchase of American -Made Equipment and Products - It is the
sense of the Congress that, to the greatest extent practicable, all equipment and
products purchased with funds made available in this Act should be American-
made."

b. Section 508: "When issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid
solicitations and other documents describing projects or programs funded in
whole or in part with federal money, all states receiving federal funds, including
but not limited to state and local governments and recipients of federal research
grants, shall clearly state (I) the percentage of the total costs of the program or
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project which will be financed with federal money, (2) the dollar amount of
federal funds for the project or program, and (3) thejjerceniage and dollar amount
of the total costs.of the project or program that will be financed by non
governmental sources.''

8. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimbursement requests
shall be submitted to the State within 30 days of the completion date (Agreement Block
1.7).

9. ADVANCES. Advance funds must be used solely for appropriate Fuel Assistance
Program expenditures. Advance program funds are to be used only for Fuel Assistance
Program vendor payments. All Fuel Assistance Program payments, including Advance
program payments, must be transferred from the Community Action Agency's (CAA's)
general operating account into a specific Fuel Assistance Program account within 48
hours after being received electronically from the Stale. CAAs must submit the bank
account number of the designated bank account for the advance funds to NH DOE prior
to the electronic submission of the funds to the CAA. Unspent Advance program funds
must remain in the FAP dedicated account at all times and cannot be comingled with any
other CAA funds. CAAs are required to submit a complete electronic copy of the FAP-
dedicated bank account statement to NH DOE on a monthly basis.

10. This is not a Research and Development (R&D) award. The Department's indirect cost rate
is 10 percent.
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EXHIBITB

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Southwestern Communit)' Services, Inc., hereinafter the Contractor agrees to provide Fuel
Assistance Program services to qualified low-income individuals and agrees to perform all such
services and other work necessary to operate the Program in accordance with the requirements of
this contract, the principles and objectives set forth in the Fuel Assistance Program Procedures
Manual, Information Memoranda, and other guidance as determined by NH DOE.

Fuel Assistance Program (FAR) services will be defined to include the following categories:

1. Outreach, eligibility, determination, and certification of FAP applicants;

2. Payments directly to energy vendors:
a. Reimbursement for goods and services delivered
b. Lines of credit

c. Budget plan payments;

3. Payments directly to landlords via vouchers for renters who pay their energy costs as
undefined portions of their rent;

4. Payments directly to clients only when deemed appropriate and necessary as defined in
the Fuel Assistance Procedures Manual; and

5. Emergency Assistance in the form of reimbursements for goods or scr\'ices delivered in
accordance with paragraphs 3 and 4 above.
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EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the services as determined by the Stale, the
State agrees to pay over to the Contractor the sum of $4,355,988 (which hereinafter is referred to
as the "Grant").

Upon the State's receipt of the 2024 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program grant from
the US Department of Health and Human Services, and Governor and Executive Council
approval, the following funds will be authori2ed:

$294,638 for administration costs, of which $51,562 will be issued as a cash advance;
$3,917,550 for program costs, of which $391,755 will be issued as a cash advance;
$143,800 for Assurance 16.

The dales for this contract arc upon Governor and Council approval through September 30, 2025.

Approval to obligate (Exhibit I) the above-awarded funds will be provided in writing by the New
Hampshire Department of Energy to the Contractor as the Federal funds become available.
Drawdowns from the balance of funds will be made to the Contractor only after written
documentation of cash need is submitted to the State. Disbursement of the Grant shall be in

accordance with procedures established by the State as detailed in the Fuel Assistance Program
Procedures Manual.

The Contractor may use up to two percent (2%) of the funds allocated for program costs to pay
for program support expenses. Program support expenses will be defined in an Information
Memoranda issued by the New Hampshire Department of Energy.

CFDA Title:

CFDA No:

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

93.568

Award Name:

Federal Agency:

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

Health & Human Services

Administration for Children and Families

Office of Community Services
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

standard exhibit D

The Coniractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace, Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et scq.), and funher agrees to have the C^ontractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151 -5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 ct seq.). The January 31. 1989 regulations were
amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-21691). and require
certification by Contractor (and by inference sub-grantees and sub-contractors) prior to award that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a Contractor (and by
inference sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a state may elect to make one certification to the Department in
each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the
certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when
the Agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension
of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government-wide suspension or debarmenl. Contractors
using this form should send it to:

Fuel Assistance Administrator, New Hampshire Department of Energy,
21 South Fruit St., Ste. 10, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The Contractor certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by::

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession of or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:

(1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) the Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in

the workplace;

(c) - Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(I) abide by the terms of the statement; and
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont'd

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

(2) notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (dX^) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
ofTicer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the federal agency
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification numberfs) of each affected grant;

(0 Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (dX2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

V

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (c). and (0-

(B) The Contractor may insert in the space provided below the sitc(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.,
63 Community Way, P.O. Box 603, Kcene. NH 03431

Check O if there arc workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Soidifut/skrn uimmunt/ij^<ic<j,Mcupon
Contractor NaMe ^

Se^ Dountds , CEO

Governor and Council Approval through September 30. 202S

Period covered by this Cenification

Name and Title of Authorized Contractor Representative

OSfsi/Sd
Contractor Representative Signature Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section I.} of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, ahd 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections I. I I and 1.12 of the General
Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
LIHEAP

Contract Period: Upon Governor and Council Approval through September 30, 2025

The undersigned certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:

(1) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a mem^r of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor).

(2) If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor),
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying",
in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard E.xhibit E-l.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awaMs at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a maieria! representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required cenificatlon shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not less than SI 0,000 and not more than SKXI.OOO for each such failure.

.  0
Contractor Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

^oufhu/ish/r)/jnmmtifiihjSerilr.t<;lnf 08j3/fS3
Contractor Name Date
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NEW HAMPSH[RE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to compjy with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oebarment, Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections 1.1 1 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, execute the following Certification;

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructionsfor Certification

(!) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessar>', the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Energy's (NH DOE) determination whether to enter into this transaction.
However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a cenification or an e.xplanation shall
disqualify' such person from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when NH
DOE determined to enter into (his transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to (he
federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the NH DOE agency to vvhom
this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction."
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal." and "voluntarily excluded,"
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the attached definitions.

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with
a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by NH DOE.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding Debarmcnt. Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary E.xclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions," provided by NH DOE, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions
and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower
tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the
covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant maydecide the method
and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not
required to, check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in
order to render in good faith the cenification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
panicipant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for trartsactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS • PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency:

(b) have not .within a three>year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or for a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, anempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes
or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1) (b) of
this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
(federal, state or local) transactions terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineiigibiiity and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by subminingthis proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineiigibiiity, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier-covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lower tier-covered transactions.

Contractor Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

^oufhvexifrn Int OSfQl/S^
Contractor Name sj Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Coniraciof identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and l.l2ofthe General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Contractor Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title .

SauthuuS. hrn Smict 5^ Inc. 08/.2//J3
Cnnfractor Name •>/ Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION

Public Law 103-227, Port C

EI^IRONMENTALTOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro Children Act of 1994, requires
that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility routinely owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of health, day care, education, or library services to children
under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or local
governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. ^

The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare
or Medicaid funds, and ponions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

By signing and submitting this f^jpllcation the applicant/ Contractor certifies that it will comply with the
requirements of the Act.

The applicant/contractor further agrees that it will require the language of this certification be included in any sub
awards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all Sub-contractor shall certify accordingly.

Contractor Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Contractor Name Date
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FAP Approval to Obligile EXAMPLE ONLY Eftiibit 1

APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE

FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

STATE •

First 7/1/2019 Wood and SEAS On^ AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

ICONTRAC.TEO BUDGET\v ', .,s .536,220.00 '5;646;370.00t 4,562.60 .  357.200.00 .• 6,648,372.60 .. I
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0;00

ITHIS, APPROVAE TO OBUGATE;., • • •  0.00 ' " 10.00 0.00 ■ . ' '0.00. ; .1.166,561:00

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 1,165.551.00 0.00 ■  0.00 1,165.651.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 538.220.00 4,480,819.00 4,582.60 357,200.00 5,380.821.60

BMCA

First 7/1/2019 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE16 TOTAL

IPONTRACTEO.BUDOET: ' .-85.653.00 .  1,003,566:00 1,000.00 • 69.960.00 ! 1,170,209.00.-: ,1

EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ITHISAPPRQVAL.TO OBLIGATE .. ,0.00 .. .  .;;207.112.00;. - 0.00 0:00 : ••:207;11Z00-r:l

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 207.112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE 95.663.00 796.474.00 1.000.00 66,960.00 963,097.00

SNHS

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTED BUDGET - , • 163,777.00 1,718,162.00 1,000.00 . 84;220.00 . M,967,149:00'-.1

EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE, . = - . 0.00 , 354,678.00' 0.00 .;0.00 ;:v --.' 354,678.00,; v|

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354.578.00 0.00 0.00 354,578.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE 163,777.00 1,363,574.00 1,000.00 84,220.00 1,612,571.00

SCS

First 7/1/2019 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

iCONTRACTED BUOGET.-i.; , 63,035.00 -.879,501:00 825.00 '.. 84;9€0.00;-.. ., r"-!,029,121.00...^1

EXPECTED BUDGET -0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 "  0.00

ITHIS APPROVALTO OBLIGATE • t .. .0.00 181,504.00 0.00 . .. 0;00:« :':i8i,504.00

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 161,504.00 0.00 0.00 181.504.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE 83,835.00 697,997.00 825.00 64,960.00 847,617.00

CAPSC

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTED BUDGET' M : • .V64,678.00 : 873,593.00 * .  767.60 -  55.110;00::r.V■.:.>e84;136.60i'\v|
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ITHIS, APPROVAL TO,OBUGATE .  o:oo . 118,373.00 • 0.00 ..0.00 '• •••'118;373.00.'"-'i
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 "  118.373.00 0.00 0.00 118.373.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE 54,676.00 455,220.00 757.60 55.110.00 565,763.60

TCCA
First 7/1/2019 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTEO.BUDGET^^ - 140;269.00.- •  ■i1^47-1,638.00. ••• 1;000.00 , ... 82,950.00 •:.1.696.757.00tr|
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE .. .0.00 -303,964.00 := 0.00. .-0.00 ••:--303,984:00 if.M
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 303.984.00 0.00 0.00 303.684.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 140.269.00 1,167,554.00 1.000.00 82.950.00 1,391,773.00
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNtABILITV
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accoumabiliiy and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after October I. 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $30,000 or more. If the Initial

•  award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over $30,000,
the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Pan 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information^ the
New Hampshire Department of Energy must repon the following information for any subaward or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency

•  4) NAICS code for conlracts/CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entit)'
8) Principal place of performance
9) Uniqueentiry ideniifier(UEI #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $30M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-

252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New •
Hampshire Department of Energy and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

KitJ-Jt , de^hPanU/s ,^£0
(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

(Southuifstfrn {jtmmunihj SfrvirL<,fln t. 08laif33
(Contractor Name) (Date)

LIHEAP24SCS Exhibit J
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORM A

As ihc Comracior Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The UEI number for your entity is: HMUUXKSHP>JC3>

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (I) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) S30.000.000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

X NO YES

If the answer to U2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to Information about the compensation of the e.xecuiives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or I S(d) of the Securities Exchonge Act
of 1934.(15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

L1HEAP24SCS Exhibit J
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State ofthe State ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHWESTERN COfvlMUNITY
SERVICES. INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprolit Corporaiion registered to transact business in Neu- Hampshire on May 19. 1965.
I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's oflice have been received and is in good standing
as far as this olllce is concerned.

Business ID; 6SSI4

Certificate Number; 0006I9406J

%

so

%

sjfi

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

'■ Kevin W?tterwn hereby certify that:(Name of the elected ClerWSecretary/Officer of Corporation/LLC)

1. 1 am a duly elected ClerWSecretary/Officer of Southwestern Community Services (nc.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders duty called and
held on i/wn? . 2211 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and votino

(Date)

VOTED: That B^th Pgr)tels, CEP (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Southwestern Community Services Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

me Slate of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is aumorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I here^ certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract an^ndment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the dale of this Cerlificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the Stale of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
po8itlcn(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that mere are any
limits on me aumority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts wilK^e State'tf New Hampshire
all such limitations are expressly stated herein. ^ ^

Dated: 8/21/2023

oftura Elected Officer
Name: Kevin Watterson
Title; Chairperson

Rev. 03/24/20
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To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

Ws' have audited the. ac.companying consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which corriprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of May 31, 2022, and the
related consolidated statements, of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
ttien ended, and the related notes.to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and. related companies as of May
31, 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the. United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditore' Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent
•of Southwestern Community Sen/ices, Inc. and related companies and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

ResponsiibUitles of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the prepara.tion and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted: in the United
States of .America,.and for the design, implementation,, and rhaintehance of internal .control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial sta.tements-that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether tfiere aria
conditiGhs or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies' ability .to continue as a going
concern within one year after-ibe-date that the consolidated financial statements are .available
to be.issued.

•Auditors' ResponslbUities for'the Audit of the Financia! Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable, assurance about whether the consolidated -financial
stalernenls as a whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and
.to issue an-auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level'of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guararitee that an audit
conducted in-accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Govemment Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when It exists. The risk qf npt detecting a
roaterial rriisstatemerittesulting ffom fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve cdllusiori, forgery., intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. 'Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial, likelihood that,

individually or in the aggregate, they" would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based oh the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit In accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
staterhents. whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,. bOt not for the purpose- of
expressing ah opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Conimuhity Seiyices, Inc.
and related companies' internal control. Accordingly,, no such opinion is expfessjed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
Significant accounting estimates made by managenient, as well as evaluate the bvefall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements-.

Conclude whether, In our judgment; there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Southwestern Community S.ervices, Inc.
and related companies' ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time,

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
•matters, the planned scope and liming of the audit, significant audit findings; and certain
lihtema! controlrrelated.imatters that we .identified during the audit.



Report on Summarized Comparative-Information

We have previously a.u'diled Southvyestem. Communily Services., Inc. and related companies*
2021 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on .those audited
financial statements In our report date.d October 22. 2021. In our opinion, the. "surnmarized
comparative information'presented herein as of and for the year ended fVlay .31, 2021, is
consistent, ioall material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Supplemeniery Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion, on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole . The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2. U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part. 200, Uniform Administrative.
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirement's for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of -additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such Information is the responsibility of mahagenient and was derived .from and
relates -dirdctly to the underlying accounting and other records used to ..prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the. auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, irieluding- comparing and reconciling such information directly to .the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statertierits or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures 'ih accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinloh, the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly state.d, in all material respects. In relation to
the consolidated rinantiafstaternents as a whole. "

Other .Reporting Required by Government Auditing Sfandards

In accordance with Gqyernment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 9. 2023. oh- our consideration of Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s Internal
confror over financial reporting and on our tests of its cornplia.nce with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solejy to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over finanejal reporting
and compliance and, the results of that testing, and not to provide an oplriion on the
effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. .That report is an integral, part of an audit performed.in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southwestern Community Services.- Inc-.'s
internal, contrbj over financial reporting and coitipliance.

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
February s. 2023



SQUTMWESTERM COMMUNITV-SERVICES IMC AND RELATED CQMPAMIgS

•CONSOUDATEb STATEMEKTS OF FINANCIAL POStTION
MAY 31. 2022-AND 2021

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents .
Accounts receivable., net

Prepaid expenses

Tota.icurreht assets.

PROPERTY
Lend and buildings
Vohidps end oqulpmeni
Furniture ar^d nxtures

Total properly'

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, not

OTHER ASSETS

Investment In re^ed parties
Duo from.related parties
Cash escrow arid feserva funds
Security deposits.
Other assets

Total .other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and paymO taxes
Other current llabOltles-

Refundable advances

Current portion of Ecorwmic injury Disaster Loan
Current portion of long term debt'

Total current tiat>iliUes

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term debt, liess current ponton shown above
Econornic Injury Disaster Loen. less current porl^ shown above

Total nofKurrent nabOitles'

Total liablljUos

NET ASSETS

Wilhoift donor restrtctiohs
With iionof resirfdions

Tdial.nel assets

Total liablBlles and net assets-

2022

S  3.153.976

1.745.952'
243.99Q

5.143.916

29.859.136-
555.554

9^.072-
31.372.762

15:527.483

15-845.279

94.230

47.568

1.479.277

111.033

'm

1.732.490

t 22.721.667

20B.035

229.110

353.786

-156.972

1.519.622

3.5W
159.974

2.633.084

11.243.212
14S.41S

11,369.627

■14.022.711

6.564.624
134.352

8.698.976;

$ 22.721,687

2021-

S  l.722.94'1
1.783.993'

62.628

3569.562

26.549:202
S65;380
934 44^

30.049.023.

14.621.952

15:427.071

138.001
55,133

1.471.741
105,790

m

i.771.054

S 20.767.687

240,566
176.074
244.003
148.854
729.955

142.174

1.675.646

10.911,827
150.000

11.061.627

12.737.273

7.815.065,
215.349

8,030.414-

$ . 20.767.687

'See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemerits
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SQUTrtWESTERN COMMUNfTY-SERVtCES. INC. AND RgLATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OP AC-TIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2022
^WtTH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATtW INFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Govcmmont co'fijrects
Program service-fm
Rental income

Support
Sponaorahip
tnteresi Income

Forgiveneas o/ ̂ bt
Msceilanedus

IrhKjod contHbinions

Total revenues and other support'

NCT ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and
net assets relesstf Irom restrlcllons

EXPENSES

Program sarvicn'
Home er>ergy programs
Education and nutrition

Homeless programs
Housing saMces
Eqanomfc devebpmeni services
.Other programs

Toial'program services

-Supportlrtg ectMtlos
.Managcmerit and general

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON S^E OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON INVESTMENT IN LIMITEO PARTNERSHIPS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM
LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

NET ASSETS. ENO.OF.YEAR

Without Donor.

RettHctlons *

$ 24.553.874.
2.991;407

1.817.636
610.247

26.520
-1.099

90.600

156.954
'69.388

X.339.412

3b.479.337

7.051.760

2.826.493

l3.349.4tS

3.070.448
656.791
683.000

27.639.905

2.031.266.

29.67-1.171

808.166

(14.838)

(43.771)

749,559

T.eis.oes-

With Donor

Restrictions

58.928

58.928

130.925 (139.925)

(30.997)

(80.997)

(80.997)

215.349

2022

Total

S 24.553.574
•2.991.407

1.817.636
669.175
.28,520
1.099

-.90.609
156.954
•69.368

30.398.340

7,051.760

2.626.493

13.349.415

3.070.446
(558.791
683.000

27.639.905

2.031.266

29.671.171

727.169

(14.636)

lliiZZD

668.562

6.030.4 H

2021

Total

S 14.451.497

2.708.902
1.657,741

601.638

21.703
1.402

518:501

239,096
65.414

'20.265;694

20-265.894

5.559.497

2.629.099

5,516.502

2.913.953
621.784
750.430

t7;991.28S

1.948.672

•19,939.937

325.957

(60.897)

265.060

4.911.109

2.6S4.245

•S .6.564.624 $ 134.352 % 6.698.976 $■ 6.O30.414.

See Notes lo Consoiidatdd Flnanclel Statements
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aoimiiwggmtM cokmuwtv ggwvicgg mc amo ofi^Tft^cemPAmti

CONSOtrOATCD STATCHCMT OF FUHCHONAl SXPCMSES
FOR TWg YEAR EWOeo MAY 31. WP

Edweation Eeenemic Managsmtm

Home Energy and Homaiaas Housing OevdepeMm Othtr Total and 2922

Proorenm Ntrlrtilon Preersms Servlees Proaram Preoram General Total

P»re* %  asi.449 i  1.553.713 5  601.469 5  87ZI77 5  340.079 5  416.924 t 4.135.811 t  856,746- S 4.9927M.
P«yr4taxM 45.133 127.357 49.649 51.5*9 X.490 35545 340.123 66.379 406.901

Efflptoyeo beneCts t37.M4 387.109 140.322 217.637 27.775 137.164 1.047771 101,743 1.149.314

ftSUBlOU 31.440 05.676 32.667 49.044 16.083 15580 243,710 66.594 310.3O4

Adwvtiiing 1.0M 12.573 426 7.537 6.801 •X.<OS 5,120 39.929

BerA charges 3S 663 4.630 • 5.348 0.701 15949

ConpMter con »7 15.754 13.319 8.001 14,818 52.199 ■ 127.747 179.940

CORnc&tf S38.S7S 15756 87.421 26.033 - X;197 992782 63.330 1.096.212

Oajncrtaen 26.436 134.0» 674.506 - 5610 838.790 150.963 989.773

OuMA99*tr*tlon 2.539 <90 SOS 125 3.682 11.T39 . 19.401

Oupfcstirtg 6.680 - . . 6.660 .5.903' 14.183

irwranc* 6.123 16.620 35.676 6^106 19.850 7.313 147.099 45.537 195236

■marts 423 9.S36 46.822 . 278 59.059 116.506 177.965
Uaskig ano eortaranca - 354 3.255 832 5662 7J03 I.6M 6.939
iRsSliiiiijua atpensa 670 2.917 120 ni2i7 6.368 5102 127.414 X.BI4 156728
MacaSartaowa taxes - - 129.978 129.978 150 1X.126
EcnAxTMra purchases t47X 3.471 5.378 519 24.048 720 24.768
Omeaaxpataa 43701 6.735 22.754 10.409 3.513 90 88:702 24.071- I157F3
Peatiea 190 363 26 24 171 - 796 35927 34.723
Protaastooel lees 1.075 4.323 26.9X . 220 32748 85,753 II8.X1
SlaA aevetopmem ana wrSng 1.660 2.667 625 3,005 121 i,e«5 10.259 6.781 ■  19.040
SuOseripwna • 228 • . 228 160 400
Telaphen# 5.147 3.727 21,670 10,709 i.gx 1.298 53.451 48.594 1W.075
Ttn« 4.715 18739 11.156 14.784 26.3W 249 76.035 1.428 77.523
Vanba 9.433 2.099 24.565 79.216 15061 126.374 1.420 129.794
Ram 6.000 16700 . 24.595 . 46795 - 48.695
Soact costs 31.637 205.132 456.408 886.317 10.7*2 25 1.S69.461 164,162 1.755623
Oiraei deni aaateance 5.336.625 212746 11.724.070 11.007 37.540 5053 17.327.043 • 17.327.043
IrtAnl expenses 69.368 . . 69766 - 69.368

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES B^ORE
MANAOEMENT AND GENERAL MXOCATION. 7.061.760 2776.483 13.349.415 X070.448 658.791 663.000 27.e».»$ 2731708 29.671,171

annfM>n nl mweg^fiw* »ftff arptnamt 516.2X 207.720 961.053 225746 48.415 S0.194 5031.266 12.031.268) .

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES S  7.569790 S  3.034.213 5 14.330.488 5 3.296.094 . 5 707.208 t  735194 $ 29.671.171 5 S 29.071.171

5*« Net** 19 CoAMlMatM FliwncJsl StBttmcftta

t
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SOmXWESTERN CQMMUNtTY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED CQMPANIgS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENOED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 -2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

-Change in niel asseU $  668,562 S  26S,DW
-Adjusiments to reconcile change in net essel$ lo.
net cash rrorn'OperaUng activities:'
Oepretiatlpn 989.773 ■909.155
Lc^ on sale of property 14,836"
Loss on inve^ent in Umitod partnerships 43.771 ■60.897
Forgivcmess of debt <90,6Q9) (518.501)

Ooccease (incfsaseXIn ossats:
Accounts receh/a^e. noi 38.041 (580.504)
Prepaid expenses (181,362) •31,348"
Due from related parties 7.572 ■.3,929
Security deports (5.243) (2.242)

^Decrease) increase in (tabll)tles:
Accounts payable (32,551) 22,045
Acca/ed expenses 59,036 36.929
Accrued payroll end payroll laxes 109,763 15.609
Other cuVrenl' liabilittes 10,118 (300)
Refundable advances 769.667 439.518

NH CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,421.394 -682,943

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
:Proceeds frorn sale of property 3:B40- .

^rchase of property (831,642) (432.400)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (827,8021 (432.400)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Process from long term debt _ 85,000

"Repayment of long lenh debt (155.021) (272,062)
Proceeds from Economic Injury Disaster Loan - 150,000

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (155,021) (37.062)-

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH 1.438.571 213.481

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH. BEGINNING OF YEAR 3.194,^2 2.210.05(j

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH TI^NSFERRED
FROM LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

• 771.1'51

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR $  4,633.253 S  9.194.682

iSe« Notes.to Consolidated Rnancial Statements

a



SOm-HWESTERM COMMUNITV RgRVICgS. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY ̂1. 2022 AND 2021

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Ces^ paid during the year for inlereil

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH:

Cesh and cash ogui^lents
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Total cash .end restricted cash

2022

176.903

S  3.153,976
1.479.277

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Property financed by long-term dobl

Transfer of assets from r\ewly consolidated LRs;
Pmpold expenses
Land and buildings
Furniture and fixtures

Security deposits

Total transfer of'assals from newly consoUdaled LPs

Transfer of llabiGUes from r^wly consolidated LPs:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Long terrh debt

Total transfer of iiabiliilos from newty consoRdaied LPs

Total partners' capital from newty consolidated IPs

Partnei^' capital previously recorded as Invesbheni in.related parties

Total transfer ol.partners' capflai from newly consoiidaled LPs

2Q23

• 175.005

S  1.722.941
1.471.741

S  4.633.263 i. 3.194.682

595.015 $ 787.699

$ $ 36.807

3.382.003

-624.491

■33-.78t

s 5 4.077.082

s -  $ •57.865
•48.122

1.690.298-

s ,  s 1.994.285

J -  $ 2.853;948

•297

s 2.854.245

See Notes to Consolidated FInanclel Statements
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COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLlbAtED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY QF.SIGNIFjCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Soythwestem Community Services, Inc. Is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
formed as an umtDrella corporation that offers an array of services to the elderly,
rfisabled, and low-incorfie households in the Cheshire and Sullivan counties of
New 'Hampshire. Various programs provide assistance In the areas of education,
child development, employment, energy and Its conservation, housing, and
h.ome|essriess prevention. Services are provided through. Southwestern
Cpmmuriity Services. Inc.. and its related corporations, SCS Management
Corporation, SCS Housing; Inc., SCS Development Corporation. SCS Housing
DeVelopmenti Inc.. and various limited partnerships, as described below. The
Organization is committed to providing respectful support services and assisting
individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helpirig them overcome the
causes of ̂ verty. The primary source of revenues is derived frorn ".governmental
cohfracts.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial, statements include .the accounts of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. and the following entities (collectively the Organization)
as Southwestern Community Services. Inc. has both an econorhic interest and
control of the entities through a majority voting Interest in their gdveriilng board.
All;signiricant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic"consolidated financial statements.

•  SCS Management Corporation
•  SCS Housing, Inc.
•  SCS Development Corporation
■  SCS Housing Development. Inc.
•  Drewsville Carriage House Associates, Limited Partnership (Drewsville)
•  Troy Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (troy Senior)
•  Keene East Side Senior Housing Associates, l^imiled Paiine.rship (Keene

East Side)
• Winchester Senior Housing Associates, Llrhited Partnership (Winchester)
•  Swanzey Township Housing Associates, Lirriited Partnership (Swanzey)

Snow Brook .Meadow Village Housing Associates, Limited Partnership
(SnowBrook)

■  Keene Highland Housing Associates, Limited Partnership. (Keene Highland)
• Warwick Meadow Housing Associates. Limited Partriership (Warwick)

BasiS'Of Accounting

The- consolidated financial statements of the Organization have, bejen prepared
utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally accepted
apcbuiiting pririciplei

10



SQUtHWfeSTERN CQMMUNITY SERVICES INC AND RELATED CQMPAK|j^S

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Basis.of Presentation
The-consolidated finanbial statements of the Organization.have been'prepared in
accordanbe; vyith U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAR),
which .require the Org'anizalioh to report information regarding .its' firiancial,
position and activities according to the following net ass.et classifications. The
classes of. net assets are determined by the presence or abserice of donor-
imposed restrictions.

Net assets-without donor restrictions: Net assets that -are' not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any pu.rpo.se- in
performing the primaiy objectives of the Organization. These net assets rriay
be used at the discretion of the Organization's Board of Direct.dfs.

. Net, assets with' donor restrictions: Net assets subject to. stipulations irnposed
by dortors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature;
those restrictions will be rhet by actions of the Organizatioh or by passage of
iirhe. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the dorior has
stipulated, the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

As of May 31. 2022 and 2021, the Organization had net assets without donor
restrictions and with donor restrictions.

The- financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
informatldn In total but not by net asset class. Such information .does nP.t iriclugle
.sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with generajiy accepted
accounting'principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction
v/ith.the Organization's financial statements for the year ended May .31, 2021 from
which the summarized information was derived.

Refundable Advances

The.Orgariization records grant and contract revenue as refundable advances until
it is expended for the purpose of the grant or contract, at which time It is ,recognize
as revenue.

In^klnd. Support
The Orgariizatioh, records various types of in-kind support including professipna!
services and materials. Contributed professional services .are recognized if the
.service received creates or enhances long-lived assets or re.quires specialized-skill,
are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically'need to be
purchased if riot provided .by donatidri. Contributions of tangible assets are
recbgrilzed ait fair value .when received-.

11



COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accPunting p'nncipJes.cequires management to make estimates and assurhptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets arid liabilities and .disclosure Of
continge'rit assets and liabilities at the date of the fmanclal staterrients and the>
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the. reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash!Eauivalents

For purpose's of the statement of cash flows,, the Organizatioh considers all liquid-
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount rrianagement expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding .after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at-May 31. 2022.
The allowance for uncollectibie accounts was approximately $3,600 for the year
ended May 31, 2021. The Organization has no policy for charging interest on
overdue accounts.'

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash accounts in several financial institutions,
which at times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced .any tosses iri such accounts and believes it is not exposed to ahy
significant risk with respect to these accounts.

Current Vulherabllltv Due to Certain Concentrations
The Organization.is operated in a heavily regulated environment. The operations
of the Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules and
regulations of fedetal, state and local regulatory agencies. Such administrative
directives, rtjies and regulations are subject to change by an act of Congress or
Legisiature.. Such changes may occur with little .notice or inadequate fun.ding to
pay for the related-cost, including the additional administrative burden, to compjy
with a. change.. For .the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021 appcoxjmately 80®/>.
and 7i®/o, respectively, of the Organization's total revenue was received from
govemment-iagencies. The future nature of the Organization is dependent upon
continued support from the government.
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INC. AND RELATED

NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31..202^ AND 2021

Property and Depreciation

Purehased property and -equipment are.,stated at cost.at tti'e date of-acquisition
or at fair value-at the date of receipt in the case of donated property. The
Organization, generally capitalizes and depreciates all assets with a 'cost greater
than $5,000 and an expected life greater than one year. Depreciation, is provided
for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to .amortize the cost of
the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows;

Buildings and.imprpvem.enls 10-.40 Years
Vehicles and equipment 5 -10 Years
Furniture and fixtures 7 Years

The use of-certain assets is.-specified under the terms of grants received from
agencies of the federal govemrnent. These grants also place liens on certain
assets and impose restnctions on the use of funds received from the diispositidn
of the property. Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021
totaled $989,773 and $909,155, respectively.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Income Taxes

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and SOS Management Cprporation are
exempt from Federal Income taxes under Section 5,pi (c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exempt from
income tax on their exempt function income.

SC.S Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation and SCS Housing Development,
Inc. are taxed as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net operating loss
Carryforwards available for the May 31, 2022 and 2021 tax feturtis tdta.ling
$1,252,122 and $1,230,191, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset
against future taxable income and. if no.t used, will begin to expire -in 2027. :SCS
Development Corporation has federal net operating loss carryforwards totaling $513
and $542 at May 3i, 2022 and 2021, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be
■offset against future taxable income and. if not used, will begin to,expire in 20^.
SCS Housing Development, Inc.. has federal net operating lo^' carryforwards
totaling $55,129 and $5.9,861 at May 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. These loss
carryforwards may b.e offset against future taxable income and. if not used, will begin
to expire in -2035.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.,AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO consolidated FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

The tax effects of the carryforwards as related, to deferred tax assets i.s as
follows as of May ;31. 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Tax benefit from loss carryforwards $274,630 $271,025
Valuation allowance f274.630^ f271.0251

Deferred tax asset S $

Drewsvijle. Troy Senior, Winchester, Keene East Side, Swanzey, Snow Brook,
keene Highland, and Warwick are taxed as partnerships. Federal income taxes are
not payable By, or provided for these entities. Earnings and losses are included in
the partners" federal income tax returns' based on their share of partnership
earnings.. Partnerships are required to file income tax fetums with-the State of New
Hampshire and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting "Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes,"
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for rheasuring,
the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. Management has
analyzed the Organization's tax position taken on its income tax returns for all
open years, and has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is
necessary in the Organization's financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair
value which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a
framework in generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value
which emphasizes that fair value js a market-based measurement, riot an entity-
specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair value
measurements. In accordance with ASC 820-10, the Organization may use
valuation techniques consistent with market,, income and cost approaches to
rheasure fair value. As a basis for consideririg market participant assumptions in
fair value rneasurements. Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value hierarchy, whjch
prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest .priority to Level 3
rrieasurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC Topic
820-10 are described as follows:

Levef .l - Inputs to the. valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active, markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Levet 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are-other than quoted marttet
prices In active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of .the reporting- date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

14



<?PWPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

■i:eve/3- Inputs.to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations wheris there is littie or no market activity'for the asse't or liability and
.the reporting entity :mdkes estimates and assumptions related to the pricing of
.the asset .or'liability including assumptions regarding risk.

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivables-, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances' approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of those instruments-

Support and.Revenue Recognition

Contracts with Customers
Program fees are reported at the amount that reflects the cp'nsideraition to which
the- .Organization expects to be entitled for providing chiidcare services to. Its
•ciients.

■Geriefelly. the Orgahizatioh bills customers and third-party payers .several days
after the services are perfcrrhed. Revenue is recognized as. performance
obligations are satisfied. Performance obligations are detertnined based on.the
nature of. the services provided by the Organization. The Organization measures
the performance obligations of its chiidcare services to .the point when it. is no
longer required: to .provide services to the client, which is generally weekly for
chiidcare Sen/ices. These services- are considered to be a single perfornnance
bbligatrdn.

Revenue for perforrnance obligations satisfied at a point in. time is recognized
when s,en/lces are provided, and the Organization does not believe it is required to
prpvlde additional services to the client.

Based on the nature of services provided by the Organization and due to the fact
that, all of the Orga.riization's performance obligations related to contracts with a
duration p.f less than one year, the Organization has-elected to apply the optional
exemption provided in FASB ASC 606-1,0-50-14(a) and, therefore Is not required
to •disclose the aggregate amount of the trarisaction price allocated to
perfprmance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of
-ttie reporting period.

The transaction price for chiidcare services is based on standard charges -for
services provided to clients. Under the terms of the State of New., Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services chiidcare subsidy -prograrris;,
reiniburs'errient for chiidcare services provided may differ from established rates.. It
is the. Organization's policy to set its rates to 'be consistent With, current
.reimbursement: rates. Therefore, amounts due dp not Include significant variable
consideration subject to retroactive rfeyenue adjustments -due 'to settlement of

•reviews and audits.
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SOUTHWESTERN COfVIIVIUNltY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Private Granf Revenue and Contributions

Private gra'nt contributions are recognized when cash, securities or.other
assets, an unconditionalprorr>ise to give, or notification pf a'beneficial interest is
received-. 'Conditional'promises to give are not recognized until the conditioiis on;
which they depend have been substantially met. Support that Is restncted by the
donor is reported as an increase in net assets without donor restrictions, if the
restriction'expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All
other dpnor-restrlcted support Is reported as an increase in net assets with
donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction
expires, (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accorripiished)., net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets
without donor restrictions and reported in the combined statements of activities
as net assets released from restrictions.

Grants and Supodrt

Grant revenue is "derived from various federal grant agreerhents and various
state and private entity passthrough grant agreements and contracts to provide
funding support of the Organization's programs and services provided by the
Organization Including chiidcare, child development, social, health, nutrition,
employment, language, energy, and special needs services to families enrolled
in the .Organize,tion's progra'ms. The Organization has evaluated its grant
agreements against applicable accounting standard guidance and determined
that the grant agreements are contributions (nonreciprocai transaction)
conditioned upon cei^ain performance requirements and/or incurfence of
allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue
when the Organization has incurred expenses in compliance with specific
provisions of the grant agreements.

Rental Revenue

The Organization derives revenues from the rental of apartment units.
Revenues are recognized as income, monthly, when rents become due and
control of the apartment units is transferred to the lessee's. The Individual
leases are for a term of one year and are cahcelable by the tenants. Control of
the leased units Is transferred to the lessee in an amount that reflects the

consideration the Partnership expects to be entitled to in exchange for the
leased units. The cost'incurred to obtain a lease will be expensed as inc.urre.d.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES.

NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
.FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of .providing the Various programs and'other -activities have been
summarized on a.functional basis. Natyral expenses are defined by their nature,
such-as salaries, rent, supplies, etc. Functional expenses are classified by the
type of activity for which expenses are incurred, such as management and
general and direct program costs.. Expenses are ailocated by function using a
reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based on function and use.
The costs of providing certain program and supporting services have been
directly charged.

The Organization submits an'indirect cost rate,proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
serviceis. The Indirect cost rale is 12% effective-from June 1.-2021 through May
31.2022.

NOTE 2 BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization'has a $250,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank.
Interest is due monthly and is stated at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rale or at a
fioor rate of 4%. The line is secured by all the Organization's assets. As of May
31, 2022 and 2021,, the: interest rate was 4%. There was no o.utstanding balance
at May 31. 2022 arid 2021.

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt consisted of the following at fylay 31:

1% mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
in m'onthly installments for principal and interest of
$891 through August 2032i The note is secured by
real, estate of the Organization (NHH. 96 Main
Street);

2022 2021

$  117,535 $ 127.000

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to
Community Development Finance Authority, in
quarterly principal payments based on an operating
income formula applied to- affordable housing
portion of the specified real estate. The note is
.secured "by real estate of the Organization (CDFA,
96 Main Street). 25,589 27.589
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SQUTHWESTgRN COMMUNITY SERVICES, tNC AI^D Rff l^J^P COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOUDATEb FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

Non-interesi -bearing mortgage payable to Ne.vy
Hampshire Housing. Payrhent is deferred for 30
years, through September 2031, or untir project is
'sold or refinanced. The note is secured by- real
estate of the OrganizaUon (NHH, 17 Pearl). 242.708 242,708

Non-interest bearing rhortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment, is deferred for 30
years, through July 2032, unless there is surplus
cash from-which to make a payrnent. or until project
is sold or refinanced. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHH. 41-43 Central). 376:066 376.066

4'.25?/o rnprtgage payable to a, bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $1,875
•through December 2016. with a balloon payment
.that was due January 2017. The note was
amended during the year ended May 31, 2019'. and
js now due. December 2026. Under the amendment,
interest rate is 4.94% and monthly installments for
principal and interest are $1,957 The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization
(People's United Bank. Milestones): 94,456 1.12,702

4.37'5% note payable to Rural Housing Service in
.monthly installments for principal and Interest of
$11,050 through May 2049. The note is secured by
real estate of the Organization (TD Bank. Keene
Office). 2.095.301 2.134.970

Non-interest bearing note payable to Cheshire
County in New Hampshire. Payment is not
necessary unless Organization defaults on contract.
Jhe' note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG, Keene Office). 460.000 460.000
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SERVICES.

NOTES to eONSOLlDATEb FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

■Note'payable to a bank in monthly installrhents for
p'rincfpai and interest of $2,463 including interest
through 'May.2039, Irilerest Is adjusted every five
■years based on remaining principal balahee and
XlasslC Advantage Rate" provided by Federal
Home Loan Bank, of Boston which resulted iri an
Interest rate of 4.67% at May 31; 2022 and 2021.
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (ID Bank. Keehe Office/Community
Way). - 362,931 376.617

Non-interest bearing, note payable to the United
States Departrhent of Housing and Urban
Development., No payment is due and beginning In
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each year
providing the property is used for low income
housing- through "January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
Ashuelot). 50.00.0 75.000

Non-.interest bearing note payable to the United
States- Department of Housing and Urban
Developrnerit. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each year
providing, the property, is used for low income'
housing through January 2025. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (HUD. 112
Chartestbwn Road). 30.000 45,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Harhpshlre; Housing in annual payments in. the
amount of 50% of annual surplus cash through July
2042 at which time the remaining balance is due.
The. note: is secured .by real estate of the
Organization (NHH, Second Chance). 794;i89 794.'189

Non-interest bearing note payable, to a county in
New Harripshire. No payment is due and 5% of the
balance Is forgiven .each year through 2032 when
the remaining balanbe becomes due., the note is
isecured by real estate of the Organization (CDBG,
.Second Chance)., 296.217 '311.808
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SQUTHVtfESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AfsiD_B£LAIED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE VeARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021;

Non-interest bearirig note payable to a county in
New Hampshire, relating lb. an agreement between
the. City of l!Ceene and SCS for' the purpose of
renovating Keene shelters. In total, SCS will receive
$472,000 from CDBG. The agreement was
amended during the year ended May 31, 2022 to
increase the, total loan to $652,091. SCS will

receive the funds as progress is made. The note Is
secured by'real estate" of the Organization and will
be fully -forgiven providing the. facility serves low-
and moderate-income individuals for 20 years
(Keene Shelters). 629,280 127;215

5.54% note payable to -a finance company in
monthly ihstallrrt'ents for principal and interest of
$543 through .Augus.t 2022. The note is secured by
a'vehicle (Ally, Ecbn'oltneVan), 1,581 7.815

2.99% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for 'principal and interest of $820
through May 2031. The note is secured by real
estate, of the Organization (Savings Bank of
Walpole, 45 Central: Street). 76,974 84,395

Non-interest beanng note payable' to the City of
Keene, New Hampshire. The note expires in June
2022 and payment js not necessary unless the
Organization defaults on contract. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (City of
Keene, 139 Roxbury Street), 77,100' 77,100

Non-lntere'st bearing note payable to the City of
Keene, New Hampshire, with an original balance of
$240-,000 reduced to $204,000 when the
Organization acquired the note from Keene
Housing in July i202p. No-payment is due and 5%
of the balance is- forgiven each year through June
2037. The. note Is secured by real estate of the ^
Organization (City of Keene. 139 Roxbury Street). 192,000 204,000

3.575% note payable to, a finarice company in
rhonthly Installments for principal and Interest of
$.650 through September 2026. The note is secured
by a vehicle (Leaf! Dodge Ram). .30.888

*  /
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SQUtHWgSTERN COMMUNrTY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31; 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

3.75% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments'for principal and interest of
$530 through November"2026. The note is secured
by a vehicle (Leaf. Promaster Van). 25,960

4.373% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$534 through December 2026. The note is secured
by a vehicle (Leaf, Promaster Van). 26.576

Troy Senior • Non-ihteresi bearing note payable to
a county iri New Hampshire. Payments are deferred
until the note matures in June 2029, The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (CDBG). 640.000 640.000

Troy Senlpf r NonTi'nferest bearing note payable to
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority to fund
energy e.fficierit improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note Is secured by real, estate of the Organization
(NHH). 140,210 140,210

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to a county in New Hampshire. Payments
are deferred until the note matures in December

2028. The note is secured by real estate, of the
Organization (CDBG). 900,000 900,000

Keene East Side •- Non-interest bearing note
payable .to New Hairipshire Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) to fund
energy upgrades and capital Improvements,
Beginning In 2016, 10% of the note is forgiven each
year based ori the rolling balance. The mortgage
may be released after ten years in January 2026,
The note is secured by real estate of. the
Organization (CDFA). 116,841 139,860
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SQUTHWeSTERN-CQMMUNITV SERVICES. INC AND RELATED COMPAKilES

NOTES TO CONSdLlbATED F.INANCIAL.STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31.2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
•payable to Nevy Hampshire Housing to fund, energy
efficient jmprbvemenls through the Auihorily's
'Greener Homes Program. Paymeril is deferred for
30 years, through August 2042. The note is
secured by-real estate of the Organization (NHH). 228,934 228,934

Swanzey • Non-recourse, 4.90% simple interest
rriortgage note payable .to the New Hampshire
Housing (HOME)., due September, 2033. principal
and interest: payable at the sole discretion of the
lender from the- excess cash of the borrower
determined by fomiula, secured by the
■Partnership's- land and buildings; -subject to' low
Income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 286,530 287,7.10

Swanzey - Non-recourse mortgage note payable to
fslew Hampshire Housing (AHF), due September
2043, payable in monthly installments of $1,698.
including interest at 2.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and buildiri.gs, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 40 year
term of the rnortgage. 341,364 353,561

Snovy Brook r Non-recourse, mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing, due July
2057', payable in monthly, installments of $2,002
including interest -at 4.35% secured by the
.Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
incorne housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 431.859 436,9.74.

Snow Brook - Nori-recourse, zero. Interest mortgage,
note payable to New Hampshire Housing. (AHF),
due Jurie 2034, pnncipal and interest payable at
the sole, discretion of the lender from the excess,
cash of the borrower determined by .formula,
secured by the Partnership's land and buildings,
subject to low income housing use restrictfohs for
the 30 year term of the mortgage. 237,173 237,173
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021
Winchester - Npn-rewurse niortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Ho.using (AHF), due May 2032.
payable In' monthly installments of $370, including
interest at 2.00%, secured by the Partnership's land
and buildings,, subject to low Income housing use
restrictions .for the 30 year term of the mortgage
note (NHH).. 39,850 43,450

Winchester Non-re.course, zero interest bearing
mortgage-note payable to New Hampshire Housing
(FAR), due May 2032, payable at the sole discretion
of the lender from the excess cash of the borrower
determined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30-year
term of the mortgage note (NHH). 77,452 ■ 79,609

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing,
direct subsidy AHP loan secured by the
Partnership's- land and buildings, subject to low-
income housing restrictions under the terms of the
AHP agreement. In the event of a default under the
aforementioned agreement, the loan is due upon
demand with interest accrued at a rate of 1f.67%
for the period the funds were outstanding (Federal
Home Loan Bank). 150.000 150,000

.keene Highland - Ndn-fecourse mortgage note
'payable to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due
August 2035; payable in monthly installments of
$3,122. including jnterest at 2.90%, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to iow
'income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage note (NHH). 409,579 434,7(55

Keene Highland - 30 year, zero interest, non
recourse deferred rriortgage note payable to the
City of keene, f^ew Hampshire due June 2035,
payment of principal is deferred until the due date.
Secured by land-and buildings (City of Keene). 915,000 915;006
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS-ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021.

Warwick - 30 year, .zero interest, non-recourse
deferred .fTiprtgage :note payable to the Town of
Winchester, New Hampshire due August 2036,
payment" of'principal is deferred until the due date.
sec.urOd by land .and buildings (Town of
Winchester). 500.000 ■ 500.000

Total long-term debt before unamortized deferred
■financing costs. 11,420,143 iT.a7i:;42o

Ofiarriortized deferred fiharicing costs f16.957) f17.619)

11.403,186 11,053,801
Less current portion due within one year 159.974 142.174

$10,911,627

the schedule of maturities of long term debt at May 31, 2022 is as follows:

Year Ending
Mav 31 Amount

2023 $  159,974 1

2024 164.282
2025 170.410
2026 176.786
2027 159,624

Thereafter 10.589.067

Total S11-42Q.143

NOTE 4 ECONOIViiC INJURY-DISASTER LOAN
purihg June 2020. The Organization received an Economic Irij'ury Disaster Loan
(.EjpL),-fr6ni the .Srriall Business Administration v/jlh .proceeds in the, ampunt of
$150;000. The" EIDL is payable over 30 years at an interest rate of 2.75% with -a
deferral of payments for 30 months from the date of the note. Installments; Including
principal and Interest, of $641 rtionthly begin i.n December 2022; The. 'balance of
principal and interest'Will be payable in December 2052. The loan is secured by
the Smair Business.Administration.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021.

The scheduled maturities of the EIDL as of May 31, 2022. were as-follows:

Year.EridIng
May 31

2023

:2624
-2025

2*026
■2027

Thereafter

Amount
$  3.585

3,685
3,788
3,893
4,001

131.048

^  iSQQQQ

NOJE 5 FORGIVENESS OF DEBT
During" the"years ended May 31. 2022 and 2021, .the OrganiMtion realized
forgiveness of debt .income In connection with notes payable to CommunKy
Development. Block Grant, HUD and Community Development Finance.
Authority. Forgiveness of debt income totaled $90,609 and $79,431 for the
years ended May 31, .2022 and 2021, respectively.

The Organization recognized forgiveness of debt of $439,070 related to the
Paycheck .Protection prpgram during the year ended May 31, 2021. See
additional detail at Note 16.

NOTE 6 OPERATING LEASES
The Organization.leases facilities, equipment and vehicles under non-cancelable
lease agreements at various financial institutions. Lease periods range from
month to month to 2027,. Monthly lease payments range frorn.SOOO to $3,625.
Lease expense for the years ended May 31. 2022 and 2021 totaled $156:230
and $148.143, respectively.

Future minimum payments as of May 31, 2022 on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

total

Amount
,S 52,915

49,500
49.481

'  49,959.
41.576-

S  243.431

25



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE. YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 7 ACCRUED COMPENSATED BALANCES
At May 31, 2022 and 2021, the Ofganizatibn accrued a liability for future annual
leave lime that its employees had earned and vested in the amount of $143,703
and $144,916, respectively,

NOTE 8 CONTINGENCIES

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is the 100% owner of SCS Housing, Inc.
and SCS Housing Development, Inc. SOS Housing. Inc. and SCS Housing
beveloprrienl, Inc.'are the general partners of eight limited partnerships formed
to develop low-income housing projects through the use of Low income Housing
Tax Credits. Southwestern-Community Services, Inc., SCS Housirig. Inc. and
SCS Housing Development, Inc, have guaranteed repayment of liabilities of
various partnerships- totaling approximately $11,760,000 and $11,929,000 at
May 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Partnership real estate with a cost basis of approximately $27,346^000 at May
31, 2022 and 2021 provides collateral on these loans.

The Organization receives funds under various state grants and from Federal
sources. Under the terrhs of these agreements, the Organization Is required to
use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by the governing
laws and regulations. If costs were found not to have been incurred in
compllarice with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required to
repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts, if
any, have not been determined or assessed by government audits as of May 31.
2022 and 2021.

NOTE 9 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended May 31. 2022 and 2021, SCS Housing, Inc. managed
nine and eleven'limited partnerships, respectively. Management fees charged by
SCS. Housing, Inc. totaled $237,822 and $228,239. for the years ended May 31.
2Q22 and 2021, respectively. Additionally. SCS Housing, Inc. has advanced the
limited partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Organization' has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The total amounts due and expected to be collected from the limited partnerships
and related entitled totaled $47,566 and $55,138 at May 31,'2022 and 2021.
respectively.
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SOUTHWESTERN CQMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-

FOR THE YEARS ENDED. MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 10 EQUITY INVESTMENT

'Southwestern Community-Services, Inc. and related companies .use .the equity
m.elhod to, account for their financial interests in the following companies;

2022 2021

Cityside Housing As.sociates, LP $ (9.516) $ (9,5.09)
Marlborough Homes. LP (57): (43)
Rayspn Village Senior Housing Associates, LP (12,539) (12,524)
Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates. LP (2,436*) (2,■247)
Woodcresf Drive Housing Associates, LP '137.205 180.727
Westmill Senior Housing, LP 34 49
Alstead .Senior Housing Associates, LP .(18.461) (18.452)

SGS Housing Development, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Cityside Ho.using
Associates. LP, Marlborough Honies. LP, Payson Village Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP, Wdodcrest Drive
Housing Associates. LP. and Alstead Senior Housing Associates. LP, a 0.10%
partner of Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates, LP. and a 1%.partner of
Westmill S.enior Housing. LP during the years ended May 31. 2022 and 2021.

SCS Housing, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Winchester Senior Housing Associates,
LP, Swarizey Township: Housing Associates. LP, Snow Brook. M.eadow Village
Hbu^sing Associates. LP. and Keene Highland Housing Associates, LP during the
years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021.

the remaining 99.99% ownership interest in -Keene' Highland Housing
Associates, LP and Warwick Meadow .Housing Associates, LP were .acquired by
Southwestern Com^munily Services. Inc. during the year ending/May 31. 2021
(see Note 14). and therefore the limited partnerships are .included in .the
consolidated financial statements for the years ended May 31. 2022 and 2021.
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SbUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Summarized financial information for entiti.es- -accounted for Under the -equity
rriethbd/as of'May "3~i, 2022 and 2021. ,consists of. the following:

2022 2021

Total assets S  51.204

Total liabilities 14,923 15-.200

Capital/Member's equity 36.281 37.969

• L-^.1.204- §

Income $  3,306 $ 3.267

Expenses 4.713 4.719

Net loss £  M.4071 s...

NOTE 11 RETIREMENT PLAN
The/Organiizatibn maintains a tax sheitered annuity plan under the .provisions of
Section .403(b) of the internal Revenue Code. All empioyees who have had at
least 30 days of service to the Organization are eligible to contribute to the. plan.
The Organizatibn begins matching contributions after the empioyee-has reached
one year of service. Employer contributions are at the Organization's discretion
and totaled $310,304 and $296,322 for.the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

NOTE 12 RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictidhs are.available for the following purposes:

2022 2021

NNECAC^ Annual Conference Fund

G'APS/Warm Fund
transport
HS-Parents Association
%

total net assets'with donor restrictions

$

108,508

20,0.00
5.844

$ 16;646

1.0Vt36
90,000
•6.967

S  134.352 •$
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COMPANIES

NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 13 BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The. b^3ard designates a portibn of the unrestricted net assets for WM Marcellb
GAPS-funds, there'was $12,792 and $12,790 designated by the board at May
31, and 2021 ..respectively,

NOTE 14 TRANSFER OF.PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS

Oufing the year ended. .May 31, 2021, Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
■acquired .'a .partnership Interest in two low-income housing limited -partnerships;'
Keehe Highland, and Warwick. The amount paid for the'partnership interest in
l<eerie Highland and' :Warwick was :$1 each, and at the time of acquisition,
Southwestem Conimunity Services. Inc. became the general partnen

The following is a summary of the- assets and liabilities of the partnerships at the
date of acquisitibn:

Keene
Highland Warwick

Date of Transfer 07/01/2020 01/01/2021

Cash
SecOiity deposits
Cash reserves
Property, net
Other assets

$  156,907
21,321

391,456
2.769.245

25.946

S. 68.061
12,460

154,727
1.237.249

10.861

Total assets '3.364.875 1.483.358

Notes payable
Other'liabilitles

1,372,220
85.048

518,078
18.939

- Total liabilities 1.457.268 537.017

Partners' capital 1.907.607 946,341

Partners' capital, previously recorded
as an investment in related parties .269 28

Partners' capital transferred $-1 ■907.876 SLmasa
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICEf; t(^^h|D_RELAIED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 15 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The followihg represents Southwesterri Community $ervices. Inc. and related
companies'financial assets as of May .31, 2022 and'2021 ;■

Financial assetsatyear end;
Cash.and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Due frpm related party . •
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Total financial assets

Less.amdunts not available to be .used
within.one year

Due from related party
Reserve funds

Total amounts not available within one year

Financial'assets available to-meet general
expenditures over the next twelve moriths

2022

3,153,976
1,745.952

47,566
1.479.277

6.426.771

2021

$  1.722,941
1.783,993

55.136
1.471741

5.033.813

(47.566)
(1.479.2771

(1.526.8431

(5.5.138)
(1.47.1.7411

(1.526.8791

S  4.899.928 S 3.506.934

The Organization has a goal to maintain unrestricted cash on hand to meet 30
days' of normal operating expenditures, which are, on average, .approximately
$2,350,000 and $1,559,".000 at May 31. 2022 and 2021, respectively. Jhe
Organization has a $250,000 line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.

NOTE 16 PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM
In" April 2020, the Organization received loan proceeds in the amount of $439,070
Under the Paycheck Prbtection Program (PPP). The PPP, is established as part of
the Corbnavirljs Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act). If the
Organization did not rneet the loan criteria, the unforgjven portion .of.the PPP loan.is
payable over five years at an interest rate of 1%, with a deferral of payrne.nts for the
first ten mpn'ths.. The Organization has used the proceeds for purposes consisteht
with the PPP.ahd the PPP'loan has been forgiven in full. Therefore, forgiveness of
the loan totaling $439,070 was recognized on the Consolidated'Statement of
Activities forlhe year ended May 31. 2021,
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J^ELATED COMPANIES

NOTEiS TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
■FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 17 RECLASSIFICATiON
Certain amounts and/accounts- from the prior year's financial statements were
rfeclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's.financial statements.

.Note is other events
The Impact of the novel coronavinjs (COVID-19) and measures to- prevent its
spread are affecting the Organization's operations. The significance of the impact of
these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact oh the Organization's
financial operational results, will be dictated by the length- of time that such
disruptions coritinue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable duration
of the C0VID-i9 pandemic and the impact of govemm.ental regulation's that might
t)e imposed in response to the pandemic. The Organization's business could also
te impact^ should the disruptions from cbviD-IQ Iead to changes in consumer
behavior, COVID-19 also makes it more challenging for management to estimate
future performance of the businesses, particularly over the near to mediurri term.

NOTE 19 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued:
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that prpyide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,,
including the estimates inherent In the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are everits that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through February
9, 2023; the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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SCME01AE OF EXPCNOnVRCS Of FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR TW6 VEAR EWDEP WAY 31. 2(tn
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FocSarN TrarMlt Ctuttar

Bus tro Bus FacClOe* FormUa 6 Oiscredenary Programs

(Bia Program)

PASS-THROUGH

GRAWTOR-S NAME

10.557' Stale of NH. Oepertnwl of Heekh 4 Hwen Services
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9CHEDULE OF EXPCMOfTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
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03.568
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O2-O52-O52-52OOIO-2440OOOO

1.42S.0S1>
297.066

136.431

307.274

33,817 •

4.150.168 6.353.519

Cortmrtty Services Biodt Gara

COVtD-is Community Services BtocA Cam

03.569

93.569

State cf NH, DHHS. ON. of Fandly Aashtanee

Stata of NH. OHHS. DMslon of Economic A Housing
StoUfty

500731

500731

357.612

222.106- 579.718

Commntty Services BSocfc Gram - OtscrattPftary •83.570 SiAts ol NK, OHHS. ON. of Femiy Assistanca Unknmwt 22.662

Sse Notae to Sctieduts of Expandttures of Fa^al Awarda
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SCHEDULE OF btPENOrrURES OF FEDERAL-AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR EMPgp MAY SI. KU

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGM GRANTOR/PROGRAM Tm£ '

U.S. OwMitmfM of M«»Wh A Human Stfvteca teooUwuxn

H«»d 8t*n Duster

Hnastan

C0V1O-l9M»M$»t

-ToM U.S. DepartnwM ot UiaWi S Human SaMces

U.8. Daoartmam o> Kom<«»nd SacvrtN

Cmergancy Food and SheRe* NattoW fioaid Prograrri

Total U.S. Oapaftmeni ol Itorwelend Sacuritr

TOTAL

ASSISTANCE

usti'ng

RUMPgR

03800

03.000

Oiract Fundiro
Otract FmRno

RASS-TMROUGH

GRANTORS NAME

07.024 Stats of NK OHHS. Oflka ol Human Sannccs

GRANTOR-S NUWBEH

01CH0I140*

01HE0003S8

UiAjWan

FEDERAL

,  EXRENOITURE

2,270.604

00.770 2.339,000

9JCO.O&3

9.203

0.293

24.a7.4S9

Oas Motaa to Scftaduta ol Ezpandlturaa of Fadtfvl Awards
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2022

NOtE i BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards .(the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity-of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
under programs of the federal government for the year ended May , 2022. The
information in this Schedule Is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirerhents, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of'Southwestern Community Services. Inc., if is not intended to
and does hot present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows
of the p.rganization.-

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cpst principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of-expenditures are no.t
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Southwestem Corrimunity Services. Inc. has elected not to use the ten percent
de miriimis indirect cost rate allowed'under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD DONATION

Npnmohetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

NOTE 5 SUBRECIPIENTS ^
Southwestern Cdrhmunity Services. Inc. had no subreciplents for the year ended.
May 31,2022.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASEb,ON AN AUDITOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors *pf

Southwestern Community Services. lnc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government
Auditing Standards issuied by'the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated
financial statements of Southwestern Community Services. Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies, which comprise the consolidated staternent of financial
position as of May 31, 2022, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the-year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements,, and have issued our report thereon dated February 9. 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate In. the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
•purpose of expressing an opinioh on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services.
Inc.'s irltenial control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control,

A deficiency in internal; control exisis v^hen the design or operation of a control does not allow
rrianagement. or employees. In the normal cpurse of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness ip a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemai control, such that there Is a. reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements wiH riot
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemai control that is- less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that, might be materl.ai weaknesses or significant deHclencies and therefore, rnateri'ai
weaknesses or significant deficiencies 'may exist that were not identifted. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did. not identify any ■deficiencies jri- i.riternal control that we
consider to be material .weaknesses. We identified a deficiency In'Internal control, described In
the accompariying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2022-001 that we
consider to be a significant deficiency.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reas'onable.assurance about whether Southwestern Community Services.
Inc.'s consolid.ated financial statements are free of material misstatement. we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements;
noncpmpllance with which could have a direct and material effect on'the consolidated financial
statements-. ;Ho.wever. providing an opinion on compliance with those pro.vlsibns was not an
objective.of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of nbncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s Response to Findings
Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor 16 perform limited procedures on
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s response to the findings identified In 6ur audit and
described In the accompanying schedule of findings, and questioned costs. Southwestern
Community . Services, Inc.'s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures
applied In the audit of the financial statements and. accordingly, we express ho opinion on the
response.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal coritrol and
compliance .and the resultsof that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the .effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on cortipHance. This report Is an integral part of an, audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing ' Standards in considering the
Organization's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, -this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
February 9. 2023
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- INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Cbmrhunity Sen/Ices. Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Malor Federal Program

•We have audited Southwestern Community Sen/ices, Inc.'s (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation)•compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB-
Compliance*Supplement \hB\ could have a direct aiid material effect on each, of Southwestern
Community Services. Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended May 3.1, 2022.
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the summary
of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our-opiniqn, Southwestern Community Services. Inc. complied, in ail material respects. with
the compliance requirements referred to above that could have- a direct and rhaterial effect on
each of its major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards- generally
accepted in the-United States of America; the standards .applicable to -financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
Slates; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Ufiiforrn Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, end Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards "(Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further .described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit, of Compliance
;section of our report.

We .are required to be independent of Southwestern Community Services. Inc. and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating "to our
audit. We bplieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. .Our audit does
not provide a legal-determination of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s cpmpliarice.wlth
the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design',. Implemeritatlon,. and maintenance of effective internal control .over compliance with the

.requirements of laws-, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts' or 'grant
.agreements-applicable to Southvyestem Gomrriunity Services. Inc.'s federal programs.
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Auditors'iRes'ponsibliities'ior the Audit of Compliance
Our dbjectives are to.oblajn reasonable .assura.nce about whether material nbnGomplia'nce with
•the comp.liance requirements -referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an ppijiion on'Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s cqmpiiancfe based on our
audit.-Reasonable assurarice is a-high level of assurance but is not-absolute assurance and-
therefore is pot a guarantee that an audit conducted" In accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards. "GoverrJmenf Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance w.ill always,
detect material nbncompliance when it exists. The risk of riot detecting material :noncompliance
resulting from fra.U.d is hlgher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may ipyolve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal -control.
Noncompliance with, the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if
there Is a-substantial likelihood that, Individually or in the. aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Southwestern
Community Services; Inc.'s compliance with the requirements of each major federal-program
as a whole.

In.performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, 'and the Uniform. Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit;

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance. whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures Include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Squthwesterri"
Community Services, inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above.and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of -Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s internal
contrdi over compliance relevant to the audit in order .to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal co.ntrol
over compliance In accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opiniori on the effectiveness of Southwestern Cbnirriunify
Services, Inc/s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

.We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regardliig. among other
matters, the planned scope, and liming of the audit and any significant deficiencies and rhaterial

■weaknessesiin internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit,

Report on.lntemal Control Over Compliance
A deficiency jn internal conM over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over cdmpjiance does not allow rpanagement or employees, in the normal course of perfortning
their assigned functions, to prevent, of detect and correct, noricompliance with a type of
cdmpliance requirerherit of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance'\s .a deficiency.-or combination of deficiencies in internal cbritroj over
compliance, such that there-is a reasonable-possibility that material noncompliance with a type
o.f compliaride reguirernent of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected arid corT;ected.
pri a timely basis. A slgpificaht deficiency in internal control over compliarice is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over corripliance with a type of corripliance

41



■requirement of a fecterai prc^ram that is less severe than a-rhateriai weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet irnportanl enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compiiance was for the limited purpose described In
the.'Auditors' Responsibil.HieSforthe Audit of Compiiance section above and'was not designed to
Identify all deficiencies in intemai control over compliance that might be material weakriesses or
significant deficiencies in intemai control over compliance. 'Given these limitations, during our
au'dil.we did not identify.any deficiencies th internal control oyercorripliance that we consjder 'to
be material weaknesses, as defined at>ove. However, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in Intemai control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audii was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal co;nlrol over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed..

The purpose of this report on Iriterrial control over compliance is solely to describe tlie'.scope of
our testing of intemai control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Wplfeboro, New Hanipshire
February 9. 2023
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF frlNDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31; 2022

SUMMARY OF AUDtTORS' RESULTS

1. "the-auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the consolidated-nnancial.
statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. .and related Gompa.nies were

■ prepared in accordance with GAAP.

2. One significant deficiency disclosed during the audit, of the consolidated financial
statements are reported, in the Independent Auditors! Report on Internal Cdritrol Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters'Based on an Audit of Financial
Staternehts Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weakriesses are reported.

3. No Instances of nonc'ompllance material to, the consolidated financial statements of
Southwestern Community Services. :lnc; and .related companies, vvhich would be required
to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during
the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5". The auditors'." report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Southwestern
Community Services, Inc.. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. Audit .firidlngs that are required to be reported In accordance with 2 CFR section 20b.516(a)
are reported .in this Schedule.

7. The p.rogfams tested as major programs were: U.S. . Department of Health and Human
Services; Low-Income Home Energy Assistance. ALN 93.568; U.S. Department of
Treasury; Emergency Rental Assistance Program, ALN 21.023; and U.S. Department of
Transportation; "Fomiula Grants for Rural Areas, ALN 20.509.

8. The threshold for distinguishing type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Sputhvi/estem Community Services, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS r FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

SIGNiFICANt DEFICIENCY

2022-001 - Lack of accurate and timely re.concitiatloris

CfiteHa'. internal controls ensuring timely and accurate reconciliations.

Condition: There was a delay in accurate account reconciliations at May 31, 2022.
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Cause.:.The Organization's internal-control policies-ahd'procedures were hot follow.ed as
designed.'

Effect: Significant and material -journal entries were provided by the client .to ensure
accurate financial staterhe.nts'.

Context: Reconciliatldns were hot prepared timely, which resulted in late client entries
many of which were aresult of audit testing and inquiries made-by auditor.

Recommendation: Internal control policies and procedures should be followed throughout
the year to ensure accurate and timely reconcliiations.

Views of Responsible Officials: The Organization acknowledges that intemal control
policies relative to certain reconciliations were not followed as established. The
Organization's Leadership and the Fiscal Department Leadership is avyare that is this not
acceptable and the expectation is that all fiscal controls and policies are to be followed in a
timely and accurate manner.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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SOUtHWgSTgRN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2022

There were no findings or qiiestioned costs that were required to be reported-in the Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs for the year ended May 31, 2021.
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Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Board of Directors - 2023 Composition

Cheshire County Sullivan County

Constituent

Sector

Private

Sector

Public

Sector

Ron Nason

SCS Tenant

Mary Lou Muffling
Fall Mountain Emergency Food
Shelf

Alstead Friendly Meals

Heather Cameron

Head Start Policy Council
Parent Representative

Anne Beattie

Newport Service Organitation

Kevin Watterson, Chair

Clarke Companies (retired)
David Edktns, V'tce-Chair
Town of Walpole

Dominic Perkins,
Treosurer/Secretory
Senior VP. Retail Administration

Savings Bank of Walpole

Kerry Belknap Morris, M.Ed.
. Early Childhood Education
River Valley Community College

Jay Kahn

State Senator. District 10
Derek Perland

Sullivan County Manager

Andy Bohannon
Parks, Recreation and Facilities

Director

City of Keene

Liz Emerson

Planning and Zoning
Administrator

Town of Charlestown



SCS LIHEAP

Key Personnel 2Q23'2024

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Beth Daniels Executive Director $I2U000 OVo 0

Terra Rogers Director of Energy &
Emoloymeni Programs

S61,360 50% $30,680

Sherl Saracen! Assistant Director of Energy
Services

$44,720 50% $22,360 .



Beth Daniels

Expcrieacc

Southwestern CommunUy Services, Inc., Keene, NH
Chief Executive Officer 07/2021 - Present
• Oversight of agency
• Working closely with the Board of Directors
•  Supervision of Senior Staff
•  Agency compliance

Chief Operating Officer 03/2016 - 07/2021

•  Oversight for all general operations of the agency

•  Supervision of Program Directors
•  Agency-wide initiatives
• Grant compliance

Director of Energy and Employment Programs 10/2008 - 02/2015
• Oversee all daily operations for Fuel Assistance, Electric Assistance, Neighbor

Helping Neighbor, Senior Energy Assistance, Weatherization, HRRP, CORE, and
Assurance 16 as well as the employment programs Workplace Success, Work
Experience Program, and WIA.

Career Navigator, Families at Work 04/2006 - 10/2008

Second Start, Concord, NH

Career Development Specialist 11/2004-03/2006
•  Facilitated daily job-readiness classes and skill-building exercises
• Assisted participants with barrier resolution and the job search process
• Maintained participant records and completed reporting requirements
• Received ongoing training in teaching techniques and learning styles

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Kceoe, NH
Case Manager, Homeless Services 09/2002 - 10/2003
•  Responsible for ail daily operations of housing program, rules, and regulations
•  Completed weekly and monthly progress reports
•  Coordinated house meetings, workshops, case conferences, and life skills classes

Case Manager, Welfare-to-Work 05/2000-09/2002
•  Provided job placement and retention services for caseload of forty (40) clients
• Gained working knowledge of Department of Health & Human Services,

Immigration & Naturalization Services, community agencies, and SCS



Education and Training

Leadership Monadnock 2016

Grant Writing Workshop 05/2012
Cheshire County

Nonviolent Crisis InterveotioD 2012
Crisis Prevention Institute, Inc.

Leadership Training 2010-2011
Tad Dwyer Consulting

Criticism & Discipline Skills for Managers 11/2007
CarecrTrack

How to Supervise People 11/2007
CarecrTrack

Career Development Facilitator Training 09/2005
National Career Development Association
120-hour NCDA training

Certified Workforce Development Specialist 06/2005
National Association of Workforce Development Professionals

Infection Control & Bloodbome Pathogens 01/2003
Home Health Care

Bachelor of Arts in Human Services 05/2002
Franklin Pierce College
Graduated cum laude

Proiects/APDointments

Current Board Member, Monadnock Collaborate

Current Member, Executive Committee. Leadership Council for Healthy Monadnock

Current Member. Sullivan Count Public Health Advisory Council

Created Emerging Leaders Program. SCS

References A vailable



Terra Rogers

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE: Current Director of Energy and Employment Programs with 15+ years

of experience In a non-profit setting.

•  Personnel Relations

•  Strong PC skills

•  Human Resources

•  Problem Solving

MANAGEMENT AND SOCIAL SERVICE SKILLS

•  Lead and Motivate •

•  Excellent Communication •

•  Community Outreach •

•  Decision Making •

Interviewing

Database Management
Training and Development

Maintain Confidentiality

EXPERIENCE

11/2006- CurrentSouthwestern Community Services [Keene/Clarernont, NH]

Director of Energy and Employment Programs (11/2015- Current)

Oversee all daily operations for Fuel Assistance, Electric Assistance, Neighbor Helping Neighbor,

Senior Energy Assistance and Assurance 16.

WlOA Employment Counselor (11/2006-11/2015)

Provide career management services to eligible customers with a focus on helping them obtain

employment. Follows stringent guidelines and extensive documentation to help ensure

program is running with federal and state government regulations. Serves as a liaison between

customers, instructors, school administrators and businesses. Strong understanding of

community resources to help provide appropriate referrals throughout the community.

Staples [various locations throughout VT, ME, NY and NH] 9/1996-11/2006

Operations Manager

Consistently promoted over a 10 year period. Established and maintained all store operations.

Provided high end customer service which helped to continuously exceed maximum sales goals.

Fulfilled a broad range of HR functions, including recruiting, onboarding, evaluations, staff

training, administering benefits, overseeing disciplinary action and managing store personnel.

Managed staff payroll, store scheduling, company marketing and overall store presentation.

EDUCATION

Granite State College- Concord, NH

Bachelor of Science (BS) in Behavioral Science (Magnum Cum Laude) Graduated June 2012



Sheri Saraceni

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE: Current Assistant Director of Energy and Employment Programs

•  Personnel Relations

•  Strong PC skills

•  Human Resources

•  Problem Solving

MANAGEMENT SKILLS

•  Lead and Motivate

•  Excellent Communication

•  Community Outreach

•  Decision Making

•  Interviewing

•  Database Management

•  Training and Development

•  Maintain Confidentiality

PROFESSIONAL WORK HISTORY

Southwestern Community Services (Keene/Claremont, NH] 8/2021- Current

Assistant Director of Energy and Erriployment Programs

Help assist current Director with overseeing all daily operations for Fuel Assistance, Electric

Assistance, Neighbor Helping Neighbor, Senior Energy Assistance and Assurance 16.

Great Clips Salon [Keene, NH] 10/2014- 8/2021

Salon Manager

Maintained all salon operations. Provided high end guest experience by providing a customer-

oriented atmosphere through extensive staff customer service training. Fulfilled a broad range

of HR functions. Including recruiting, onboarding, evaluations, staff training, administering

benefits, overseeing disciplinary action and managing salon personnel. Maintained staff

scheduling, supply ordering, salon presentation/marketing and attended community events.

C and S Wholesale Grocers (Keene, NH]

Accounts Receivable Analyst

Development and application of ail EFT Customers

10/2006-S/2011

EDUCATION

Keene Beauty Academy Park Ave- Keene, NH

NH Cosmetology Licensure

Graduated February 2013


